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1 City, Village or Town: County:

P-ra-fr-f^ du Chien Crawford
Street Address: 

£20 North ^eaumont Road
Current Name & Use: 

Crawford Countv Courthouse
Film Roll No.

Negative No. 
Affix Contact Prints

Facade Orient.

Original Name & Use: Source

2 ,'J-T-ICrawford Countv Courthouse <A^# J&t\

3

Dates of Construction: Source

1R67-68 A
Architect and/or Builder: Source

M-fr-Viaol Mo-r-i»is« contractor A

[ Architectural Significance
O Represents work of a master 
O Possesses high artistic values 
^Represents a type, period, or method of construction 
His a visual landmark in the area 

Other: . QNone.

Statement of Architectural Significance:

Description; Constructed in 1867 in the center 
of an expansive tree-filled lawn, the Crawford 
County Courthouse combines the distinctive rec­ 
tilinear formality of the Italianate style with 
the warm color and rough texture of Dolomitic 
limestone. Although later additions (1896, 
1931) have been appended to the original struc­ 
ture, the nearly cubic dimensions and tall pro­ 
portions of the 1867 courthouse are still 

•; apparent. Five bays wide across the front 
(west) facade and six bays long, the original 

• wing rises two stories from a raised basement
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Sources of Information (Reference to Above)

Jehn G. Gregory, A History of Old Crawford
County fChica,go: S. J r Clarke r 1932^ DD. 258-
Prairie du Chien Courier, June 21, Itfbb 259.
(Volume XIV.. No. 28) n.D.
Crawford County Board Proceedings, 1864-1868, 
p. 6"l (Stat-p Histor~i p f1 1 Sor^etv of Wisconsin

Archives)

' Representation in Previous Surveys: O HABS
O NRHP Q WRL (£) Local Landmark

© Other: WIHP
P-02-16 ,

Surveyor: , „ ,- . , , Date: 
7 L. Garfield

D. Filipowicz 11-81
Legal Description: Acreage: -, 

All of Block 28, according
to Union Plat, Prairie du Chiiin, Wisconsin
Current Owner:
County of Crawford 
Attn: Milo J. Cooper, County Clerk
Current Owner's Address:

Crawford County Courthouse, P. 0. Box 208 
Praire du Chien T WI 53821
Special Features Not Visible In Photographs: 

Interior visited? (x)Yes Q No

Previous Owners Dates Uses Source

4 Historical Significance
O Assoc. with lives of significant persons 
O Assoc. with significant historical events 
O Assoc. with development of a locality 
© Other: Associated with politicalO None.

Statement of Historical Significance:

Serving since 1867 as the administrative 
and judicial center of one of Wisconsin's 
original counties, the Crawford County 
Courthouse is an enduring historical land­ 
mark closely associated with the political 
and governmental affairs of the region. 
But the significance of the courthouse goes 
beyond its remarkable tenure: the Court­ 
house also contains a mid-nineteenth cen­ 
tury jail, a rare remnant of civil authorit} 
and criminal justice from the last century 
and a tangible link to the earliest history 
of Crawford County.

Established in 1818 as one of three terri­ 
torial counties which comprised present-day 
Wisconsin, Crawford County's history pre­ 
ceded statehood by thirty years. Thus, 
(continued — -see continuation sheet )
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Architectural Statement (cont.):

and culminates in a low-pitched hip j roof. Crisply framed by smooth stone quoins of alter­ 
nating length and crowned with an emphatic cornice above an unornamented frieze, the build­ 
ing is dominated by a central gabled pavilion which projects slightly from the main facade. 
Gable returns and stone quoins articulate the pavilion, underscoring its symbolic role as 
an entry to the building. A short flight of stairs leads to the central door and a stone 
architrave, with segmental hood, surrounds it. Above the door, a segmental stone hood sur­ 
mounts the second story window, and above that, a date stone ornaments the gable end.

Symmetrically disposed throughout the composition, tall, segmentally arched windows are 
capped with smooth stone lintels and rest on stone sills. A stone course seperates the 
upper stories from the raised basement and entry to the basement is gained through a door 
beneath the exterior flight of stairs.

A two-story limestone jail, constructed in 1896 (and recently attached to the original 
courthouse by a one-story limestone-veneered wing) has a bracketed central gable, echoing 
the courthouse, with symmetrical fenestration and heavy stone lintels and sills.

A skillfully executed east wing, constructed in 1931, projects south from the original 
courthouse,complementing its massing and materials, while subtly evoking a distinctly 
Georgian quality. A fully pedimented central pavilion, with four colossal pilasters and 
a central round headed window, rises two stories on the south facade. Although symmetrical 
in its fenestration, the flat headed rectangular windows of the east wing are less tall in 
proportion and, extending for seven bays on the east facade the addition has the simple 
planar quality of the Georgian Revival. Yet while more than half a century seperates their 
construction dates, the 1931 addition shares the gentle dignity, quiet repose, and limestone 
exterior of the original structure.

Although the 1867 wing retains the original tin ceiling, the interior features of both units 
are unprepossessing. But the most dramatic feature of the building is hidden in the base­ 
ment of the old structure where the original jail is well-preserved. Built in catacomb'-like 
fashion, with low vaulted ceilings, thick limestone walls, and poor natural illumination, 
the jail is composed of a series of squat cells with heavy iron bars and doors. A lower 
level on the north side of the basement contains five cells, each measuring seven feet in 
length x five feet in width x seven feet in height. Two solitary confinement cells are 
located on the south side of the basement, and a single cell, measuring only three feet 
wide, is located in the central corridor. The only alteration has been the addition of a 
concrete floor.

Significance:

Pristine in its formal rectitude and enriched by the warmth of its dolomite walls, the 
Crawford County Courthouse is a distinguished example of the Italianate style in public 
architecture. Built in 1867 for $23,000, and constructed with stone hauled from the village 
of Bridgeport, the chastely rectilinear design conveys at once a sense of grandeur and 
restraint. The 1896 jail and 1931 east wing addition are surprisingly compatible in scale, 
massing and material despite their varied dates of construction and and echoes of different 
styles.

In the basement of the west wing, the historic county jail is a significant and rare ex­ 
ample of a mid-nineteenth century penal facility, existing today in a surprisingly good 
state of preservation. Situated in a spacious lawn, the Crawford County Courthouse is a 
dominant visual landmark, towering .above a nearby residential neighborhood in the center 
of Prairie du Chien.
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Statement of Historical Significance (cont.)

when the "new" courthouse was erected in Prairie du Chien in 1867, it was not the 
first such structure on the site. Nevertheless, current county buildings were so. 
"unsafe and untenable" by 1866, that the county court had abandoned them.B 
Appointing a building committee composed of H. Dousman, H. Beach and William Dutcher, 
in 1866, the county board purchased the entire block around the site of the old struc­ 
ture, raised fifteen thousand dollars in taxes-A and received ten thousand dollars from 
the "businessmen" of the village of Prairie du Chien who hoped a new structure would 
enhance the community.^ On June 23, 1866, authority was given to proceed with the 
construction, plans were approved in September and Michael Menges was chosen to build 
the structure with stone hauled from the nearby village of Bridgeport.A

Although local historians claim the "new" courthouse was built upon the foundation of 
the previous structure (constructed in 1843) and that the basement prison therefore 
predates statehood, the claim has not been verified. County Board records for 1866 
clearly specify the county's approval of a new courthouse and jail, and on June 4, 
1867 the Board voted to sell the old jail at auction.^ Moreover, one county history 
reports that "during the first few years" of the new building's life, "the lower or 
half basement was used for a jail and sheriff's residence,"A failing to mention any 
previous jail on the site.

Regardless of construction date, however, the old Crawford County jail is historically 
significant as one of the oldest and best preserved penal facilities from the mid- 
nineteenth century history of Wisconsin. Used as a jail until 1896, the facility re­ 
flects an era when prison conditions were rarely more than dark and dank cells incon­ 
gruously housed only a short distance from the grandeur of the courtroom — and, in 
Prairie du Chien, located in the basement of the village's most prestigious building. 
The proximity of the dungeon-like jail to the second floor court was a visible re­ 
minder in nineteenth century Crawford County of the swift process of justice and the 
intricate connection between the judges and the judged. Not until 1896 did a new and 
separate building replace the basement jail. Now used for storage, the jail — like 
the entire Courthouse building — has been in continuous service to the citizens of 
Crawford County and indelibly reflects the long political history of the county.
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